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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Strategic Report :
for the period ended 31 December 2018

The Girectors present their first strategic report and financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2018.

Business review and development of the business

Atalian Servest Holdings Limited (the “Company) was incorporated on 27 March 2018 to facilitate the acquisition of Atalian
Servest Group Holdings {formerly Servest Limited) in May 2018. The Company is an Iindirect subsidiary of La Financiere
Atalian §.A.8, a global organisation, employing in excess of 125,000 people with €2.7bn in tumover across operations in
Europe, North America, Asia and Africa. Thay are experts in facilities management, creating environments, which enable
people to deliver ‘future fit’ solutions to help crganisations to be more efficient, effective and sustainable. Operating 32,000
customer sites across four continents and a divarse range of sectars, including corporate, central and local government,
universities, hotel, manufacturing, transport, logistics, construction and infrastructure, they self-deliver a comprehensive
range of setvices from mechanical and electrical maintenance, fabric maintenancae, special projects and energy
management to airport services, catering, security, cleaning, concierge, landscaping, and waste management, and
everything in between, ailowing our customers to focus on their core business.

To facilitate the acquisition of Atalian Servest Group Heldings Limited {formerly Servest Limited), shares wers issued in the
Company totalfing £216.9m and an intercompany loan of £338.1m from the ultimate parent company, La Financiére Atalian
S.A.S was received. Part of this intercompany loan was provided to facilitate the additional investment in Bottega investCo
S.A R.L. A third-party invoice discounting facility was also taken out by the Group during December 2018 which is the only
externai debt held by the Group.

As part of the acquisition of Atalian Servest Group Holdings Limited (formerly Servest Limited), the Group rapaid all external
borrowing and tharefore expensed all capitalised borrowing costs remaining from previous financing totalling £6.0m as well
as paying penalty fees of £7.5m associated with the early payback of borrowings from the previous providers, These are
non-underlying items as they are not expected to occur in subsequent years and have been presented as such in tha

statement of profit or loss.

Atalian Servest Hoidings Limited and its subsidiaries (the "Group"} goal is to become ane of the top five total facilities
management providers in the UK. Since the original UK Group entered the IFM.net's top 50 companies independent ranking
programme In 2011, a ranking which is based on total revenue, the Group has continued to make excellent progress and
break into the top 10. Following the acquisition of 100% of the share capital of Atalian Servest Group Holdings Limited
(formerly Servest Limited) in May 2018, the Group has generated £484.5m of revenue through both strong organic growth
and the completion of multiple acquisitions to broaden both our service density and sector coverage.

The organic growth achieved by the Group comprises a number of significant contract wins, many of which commenced
during the period. As a result, we are anticipating a strong level of arganic growth during the remainder of 2019, due to the
full year impact from these contract wins, as well as further new contract wins during 2019. The continued success of grawing
turnover organically can be atiributed to our exceptional level of service delivery combined with further development of our
facilities management offering and broadening our range of services defivered to new and existing customers.

in July 2018, the Group made a further investment into Bottega InvestCo S.A R.L., in doing so increasing the Group's
sharehoiding from 27.4% ta 27.9%. This company is the owner of the Getronics group, a global ICT integrator that provides
a diverse range of IT services across 22 counties. This additional investment has helped facilitate the purchase of Pomaeroy,
one of the leading U.S. providers of digital workplace transformation services. This has strengthened the Group's foothold
in the developing tech space which is seen as a key development area and opportunity for growth within the facilities

management sector.

Tight cost control has been maintained thraughout the period and as a result gross profit margins are at 15,5% for the period.
The Group is focussed on high margin activities, working efficiently acrass the group and increasing the number of services
provided to customers. We have also adopted a policy of centralising support service functions for any acquired businesses
to ensure that overheads confinue to be well controlled.



Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Strategic Report (continued)
for the period ended 31 December 2018

Business review and development of the business (continued)

We are continuing to show good rates of cash generation and cash receipts from customers representad 81% of turnover
in 2018. The Group generated £57.2m of cash from operations in 2018. The Group and Company are beth in a healthy
position with net assets of £183.2m and £217.0m respectively. For the Group, this consists of £369.3m of goodwill relating
to the acquisition of Atalian Servest Group Holdings Limited {formerly Servest Limited) and £356.1m of borrowings that have
been discussed above. The Company's net assets are predominantly made up of a £227.4m investment in Atalian Servest
Group Holdings Limited (formerly Servest Limited} and £289.4m of borrowings from the ultimate parent company, La

Financiere Atalian S.A.S.

Key performance indicators

The loss for the year of £33.5m is mainly down to 2 number of one-off costs and associated expenses relating to the purchase
of Atalian Servest Group Heldings Limited (formerly Servest Limited) in the period. These are discussed further in note 8.

The Group manages its operations on a divisional basis. For this reason, the Company’s Directors do not believe that non-
financial performance indicators are necessary for an appropriate understanding of the performance and position of the

business.
Principal risks and uncertainties

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are considered to be:
o Macro-economic factors;

Non-compliance with applicable legislation and govemance;

Customer and contract losses;

Retention and incentivisation of key management;

Financial risks such as credit risk and bad debts; and

Availability of capital to fund growth.

% 4 4 0 @

Macro-economic factors

General economic conditions can adversely affect the Group’s financial and operational performance in a number of ways.
The uncertainty caused by Brexit, for example, has led some businesses to relocafe oufside of the UK and has caused
others to either reduce the scope of the services they outsource or even pursue in-sourcing solutions, all of which reduces
market demand for the Group's services. Periods of recession and downturn can put pressure on the prices customers are
willing to pay and/or the payment terms that they are willing to offer. Difficult economic conditions can also lead to increased
competition from other facilities management providers, as larger competitors laok to encroach into the medium-size

customer segment in which the Group mainly operates.

The Group manages these risks as well as it can by carrying out dedicated analysis and planning where needed. For
example, the impact of Brexit on the Group is evaluated by a cross-functional Brexit working party mandated to review and
moniter Brexit related risks and to ready the business for the likely impact of exiting the Europsan Union. The Brexit working
parly has carried out impact assessments on various sections of the Group's business, has evaluated risk exposure through
the Group's supply chain and received presentations from key suppliers around their own Brexit planning, has taken steps
to engage with its employee base to raise awareness of the Home Office’s settlement scheme and associated guidance and
fracks Brexit specific risks via a dedicated Brexit risk register. The Group also targets a diverse customer base so as to
reduce the effect of a sector or industry specific economic issue that could potentially cause a reduction in sales or an

increase in costs,
Non-compliance with applicabie legislation and governance

Compliance with laws and regulations is of utmost importance to the Group, especially those laws and regulations centred
around health and safety given our “people first" approach. Failure to comply with laws and regulations could irreparably
damage the Group's reputation and undermine relationships with its customers, as well as exposing the Group to prosecution

and/or fines.

As a result, the Group has invested in specific people resource to aid and guide the business through what is a complex and
changeable legislative and regulatory landscape. The Group's Quality, Health, Safety and Environment team was bolstered
by additional spacialisms following the acquisition of Thermotech Solutiens Limited, and particular investment was made
during the period into dadicated resource to ensure the Group's compliance with the Data Protection Act 2018 from when it
came into force in May 2018, Effort will continue to be directed to assessing the impact of new developments in legislation
and regulation as and when they occur, and to reviewing the Group’s process, procedures and training needs in light of the

samea,



Atalian Servest Ho!dings\Limited

Strategic Report (continued}
for the period ended 31 December 2018

Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)
Norn-comipliance with applicable legisiation ana governance (corttinued)

During the period, the Group experienced a breakdown of internal controls within its Projects/Technical Services division.
This resulted in a delay to the ultimate parent company, La Financiére Atalian 5.A.S, releasing their external reporting ta the
market. Management have undertaken a full review of the circumstances of the breakdown, using external advisers to
support them. The Directors are confident that an improved cantroi environment has been implemented, such that the risk
of recccurrence has been sufficiently mitigated.

Emphasis is also placed on compliance with applicable anti-corruption and anti-bribery laws (including the Bribery Act 2010)
and with laws codifying ethical and social justice obligations (including the Modem Slavery Act 2015). The Group is
committed to acting ethically and with the integrity in all business deatings and relationships, and lo implementing and
enforcing effective systems and controks to ensure that corrupt and unethical behaviours play no part in the Graup's
operations. Since the acquisition of Atafian Servest Group Holdings Limited {formery Servest Limited) by the Group, the
Group's anti-carruption programme {which includes policies, statements, e-leaming fraining modules, standard declarations
of interast and gifts and hospitality registers and so on) has merged to be consistent with that deployed threughout the glabal
Atalian organisation, headed by La Financidre Atakan S.A.S (allowing the Group to benefit from the learning and experience
of the dedicated global Compliance team). All senior employees and employees with a particular exposure to the risk of
bribery {the Procurement team, for example) have undertaken refreshed training during 2018. In relation to the Procurement
team and the management of the Group's suppliers, the Group is committed to the responsible sourcing of goods and
services. The Group's purchasing processes fook to ensure that each supplier from whom goads or services are purchased
are treating their workers fairly, with respect for human rights and personal health and safety. Suppliers are required to
complete a vendor prequalification process to identify any shortcomings, and suppliers who do become approved suppiiers
are kept under review (with fuller audits taking place where needed).

Cusfomer and contract losses

The Group recognises the ongoing challenge to deliver quality services to customers at competitive rates and we have
demonstrated our capabiiities in this area through the organic growth within our existing customer base and our success in
winning new contracts. We are focussed on entering into contracts that will perform well financially by, amongst other things,
maintaining a low level of operational gearing within the profit and loss account and by recognising the factors that are likely
to result in cost increases during the life of our contracts {(such as minimum wage increases) and looking to include
contractual mechanisms fo pass such costs back to the relevant customer by way of a price increase in order to avoid loss
of margin.

This drive to enter into strong, profitable contracts helps ta provide the best foundation from which our operational teams
can take on the mantle and deliver service excellence as, once mobilised, we need to be confident we can ensure that the
Group performs its contractual obligations so as to meet customer expectations. Faiiure to do so would expose the Group
to the risk of customer and contract losses (either during the term of a contract or on renewal) and could even prevent the
Group from bidding for new opporiunities within the public sector (a sector in which the Group has a significant presence as
a facilities management service provider). In terms of the steps taken pre-contract commencement to mitigate this risk, the
establishrent of a robust contract review and big sign-off process allows for rigorous checking and challenge of solutions
and pricing madels which in itself substantially mitigates this risk, complemented by a detailed mobilisation process upon
contract aware. in terms of the steps taken post-contract commencement to mitigate this risk, our experienced and capable
operational teams are trained to run contracts both to budgets and to contract ferms, and they work to develop strong
relationships with our customers in order to remain the supplier of choice. Financial and operaticnal performance of contracts
is closely monitored and reviewed on a monthly basis at Board level,

In relation to contracts operated by companies acquired by the Group, checks are carried out during the due diligence stage
of the acquisition process in order to assess the profitability of such contracts and to identify obligations, risks and
perfarmance considerations. The financial aspects of the target company's material contracts are assessad both by the
Group's internal M&A team and by external financial advisors. By following a robust acquisition process, the Directors can
be comfortable of the suitabifity of the target company when considering the strategy and vision for the wider Group.

Retention and incentivisation of key managernent

Retention and incentivisation of key management is seen as a key risk to the Group in terms of ensuring the business has
the appropriate depth of talent ta support plans for growth. With this in mind we implemented new remuneration policy as
well as introducing new benchmarked incentive structures to facilitate both the retention of existing tafent and the attraction
of new tafent to the business. Cne of the key ways for us to achieve this is through the intraduction of a number of accredited
employee develcpment programmes.



Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Strategic Report (continued)
for the peried ended 31 December 2018

Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)

Financial risks

The Group's operations are exposed to several financial risks, primarily credit risk, interest rate risk and availability of capitat
to fund future growth (the latter has been referenced as a separate risk and commented on in more detail below). These
have been mitigated to a degree by the refinancing undertaken during the period to a six-year fixed rate debt instrument
along with an additional four-year fixed rats debt instrument that was secured during the period by the ultimate parent
company, La Financiére Atalian S.A.S. This tinancing has in turn been passed down to the Group at a fixed rate and term
which has halped reduce, to a low level, any uncertainty regarding interest rate risk or credit risk. The Group's risk
management programmae dictates that there is regular monitoring and management of thesa risks in order to protect the
Group against their potential adverse effects,

Please see note 29 for further information regarding our management of credit risk, market risk, interest rate risk and liguidity
risk.

Availability of capital

Our appraach to financing is to fund our acquisitive growth thraugh a combination of debt and equity. As part of our financing
procedures we produce sxtensive forecasts with sensitivity levels built into thase te ensure that we can meet our debt and
trading commitments as they fall due. The financial risks around availability of capital are very minimal as the Group is
funded by the ultimate parent company, La Financiére Atalian S.A.S (with the exception of the working capital facility in
place).

All of the above risks and uncertainties are kept under constant review by the Board on a day to cay basis and also via
monthly board meetings. Tha Directors are confident that the business maintains robust risk contrcl and review procedures
and that all applicable risk is managed to an acceptable level,

Future outlook

The business continues to grow significantly by; outperforming market growth and gaining market share as a result of our
excellent reputation; having a high standard of service and focusing on providing a broad range of facililies management
services. The Directors believe that this trend will continue for the remainder of 2019 with a strong pipeline in place and a
number of further potential acquisition opportunities being considersd. Our business growth has been complemented by a
robust marketing strategy aligned te our key target sectors. Working with our pariner clients and operational ieaders, we
have won covetad awards. We will continue our high service delivery expectations and forging strong partner relations by
competing for more awards in areas such as service delivery, sustainability and technelogy.

Qur key objective continues to be targeting bundled and tetal facilities management contracts to capitalise on the number of
service lines we can offer and our strong self-delivered capabilities across muiltiple and varying sectors. In addition to this,
the business is focused on expanding into new sectors, something we have been particularly successful at in the current
period with contract wins in several new sectors such as education, enhancing our share in transport, healthcare and

hospitality sectors.

The Directors believe that the Group is well placed to achieve our growth plans in a sustainable and profitable way during
the remainder of 2019 and beyond.

This report was approved by the Board and signed an its behalf by

(A A

R.A. Legge
Director

Date: 3\4\ Oclober 2011



Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Directors’ Report :
for the period ended 31 December 2018

»

The Directors present their first Directors’ report and the audited financial statements for the period ended 31 Decembar
2018,

Principal activities
The Company's principal activity was that of a holding company.

The Group's principal activity during the period was that of a facilities management provider.

Results and dividends
The loss for the period, after taxation, arnounted to £33.7m.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend during the period.

Directors
The Directors who served during the period and up to the date of signing the financial statements were:

K. J. Fine

R.A. Legge

M. De Baynast de Septfontaines

F. Aimé (resigned 22 May 2019)

S. Vemnersch {resigned 24 May 2019)

Financial instruments
Please refer to the financial assets and labilities note to the financial statements (note 29).

Political donations
No political donations were mads in the period.

Employee involvement

Information is provided to employees through regular meetings. Employees are encouraged to give their views to
management as the need arises. Staff are kept informed of the financiai and economic factors affecting the Group's
parformance by regular mestings. The Group is committed to pursuing equality and diversity in all its activities. To the extent
possible, people with disabilities are offered the same employment opporiunities as other employccs. Cmployees are
regularly updated on performance against the Group's straleyy and the Directors arg aware of the benefits in ensuring a

comprehensive understanding of employee's views.

Disabled employees

The Company gives full and fair consideration to the employment of disabled persons, having regard ta their aptitudes and
abhilities. Continuing employment and {raining is provided wherever possible for any employee who, for any reason, becomes
disabled. Opportunities are available to disabled employees for training, career devetopment and promotion,

Post balance sheet events
There are no material post balance sheet events that have been identified.

Strategic report

The Directors have included a business review within the Strategic Report. Aiso included in the Strategic Report are details
of future developments of the Company, the principal risks and uncertainties and a review of the key performance indicatars

as assessed by the Directors.

Going concern

The Group made a loss for the period. However, this performance is being funded through the Company’s treasury
arrangement with other La Financiére Atalian §.A.8 group companies which enables the Company to meet its liabiiities as
they fall due, The Group has received a letter of support from its uitimate parent company, La Financiére Atalian 5.A.S.

On the basis of their assessment of the Group's financial position, including the availability of funding from the treasury
function managed by the ultimate parent company, the Directars have reasonable expectations that the Group will be able
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Group and Company therefore continue to adopt the

going concern basis in preparing their financial statements.



Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Directors’ Report (continued)
for the period ending 31 December 2018

Directors' responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulation.

Company law requires the Directars to prepare financial statements for each financial period. Under that law the Directors
have prepared the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union and company financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and company and
of the profit or loss of the Group and company for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are required
to:

= select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

s state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed for the Group financial
statements and IFRSs as adopted by the Eurapean Union have been followed for the Company financial
statements, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

= prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group
and company will continue in business.

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and campany and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Tha Direclors are rasponsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group
and company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and
company and gnable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

Directors’ insurance and indemnities

The Directors have the benaiit of the indemnity provisions contained in the Company’s Articles of Association (‘Articles’),
and the Company has maintained throughout the period, and to the date of signing the financial statements, Directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance for the benefit of the Company, the Directors and its officers. The Company has entered into
qualifying third party indemnity arrangements for the benefit of all its Directors in a form and scope which comply with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and which were in force throughout the peried and remain in force.

Provision of information to auditors

In the case of each Director in office at the date the Directors’ Report is approved:
* 5o far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group and Company’s auditors

are unawatre, and
« they have taken all tha steps that they ought to have taken as a Director in order ta make themselves aware of any

relevant audit information and to establish that the group and company's auditors are aware of that information.

This report was approved by the board and signed on its behalf.

R.A. Legge
Director

oate 34 Ochober 2017



Independent Auditors’ Report‘ to the Members of Atalian Servest Holdings
Limited :

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion:

s Atalian Servest Holdings Limited’s group financial statements and company financial statements (the “financial
statements”) give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the company's affairs as at 31 December .
2018 and of the group’s loss and cash flows for the period from 27 March 2018 to 31 December 2018 (the “period™);
* the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union;
e the company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice {United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure
Framework”, and applicable law); and
= thefinancial statemnents have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Report and financial statements (the “Annual Report”),
which comprise: the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2018; the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of cash flows,
and the consolidated and company statements of changes in equity for the period from 27 March 2018 to 31 December
2018; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our andit in accordance with International Standards on Anditing (UK) {“ISAs (UK)”) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under 1SAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern
1SAs {(UK) require us to report to you when:

e thedirectors use of il going concern basis of arcounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or

s the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the group’s and company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for
issue,

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the group’s
and company's ability to continue as a going concern. For example, the terms on which the United Kingdom may withdraw
from the European Union are not clear, and it is difficult to evaluate all of the potential implications on the group’s trade,
customers, suppliers and the wider economy.

Reperting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annua! Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other informatien and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informatien and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or cur knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is 2 material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
based on these responsibilities.



Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Atalian Servest Holdings
Limited (continued)

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs {UK) require us
also to report certain opinions and matters as described below,

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report for the period ended 31 December 2018 is consistent with the financial statements and has been
prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Inlight of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we did net identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 8, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtair reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www.fre.org.uk/auditersresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept
or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing,.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

»  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or
certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

» the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We ave no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
Q\‘—' ‘D
Andy Grimbly (Sknior Statutory Audior)

for and on behalfbf PricewaterhouseCdopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Sta ditors
Cambridge

3 October 2019
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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
for the period ended 31 December 2018

Period from 27 March 2018
to 31 December 2018
Non-

Business underlying IFRS

Note performance items! Total

£m £m £m

Revenue 3 484 5 - 484 .5
Caost of sales {409,6) - {409.6)
Grass profit 74.9 - 74.9
Administrative expenses (61.5) {13.0) {74.5)
Operating profit 4 13.4 (13.0) 04
Shara of net loss in associate {9.9) - (9.9}
Finance Income 10 0.5 - 0.5
Finance costs 9 (14.7) (13.5) (28.2)
Loss before taxation {10.7) {26.5) (37.2)
Income tax 11 37
Loss for the period {33.5)

All losses are attributable to equity holders of the parent company

The notes on pages 18 to 51 form part of these financial statements.

1 Non-underlying items are described in note 8
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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the period ended 31 December 2018

Note
Loss for the financial period
Other comprehensive income/(expense):
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuarial gain on defined benefit plans 28
28

Defined benefit pension plan surplus not recognised
Other comprehensive expense for the pericd, net of tax
Total comprehensive expense for the period

All comprehensive expense is attributable to equity holders of the parent company.

The notes on pages 18 to 51 form part of these financial statements.
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Period from
27 March 2018 to
31 December 2018

2018
£m

(33.5)

02
(0.4)

(0.2)

(33.7)




Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2018

Nota 2018
£m

Assets
Non-currant assets
intangible assets 12 61.8
Goodwilt 13 369.3
Property, plant and equipmant 14 37.2
Investments accounted for using the eguity methed 16 783
Other toans and receivables 20 59
Deferred tax assets 23 2.4
Total non-current assets 554.9
Current assets
Inventories 17 4.2
Cantract assels 3 41.1
Trade receivabiles 18 85.1
Other receivables 18 9.0
Cash and cash equivalents 25 10.6
Total current assets 150.0
Total assets 7049
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 22 (356.1)
Lease fiabilities 15 (7.2)
Deferred tax liabilities 23 {9.8)
‘Tatal non-current liabilities (373.1)
Current liabilities
Trate and other payables 23 {112.0)
Cantract liabilities 3 (14.3)
Borrowings 22 {18.1}
Lease liabilities 15 {4.2)
Total current liabilities (148.6)
Total liabilities (521.7)
Net assets 183.2
Equity
Share capital 24 2169
Accumulated losses (33.7)
Total equity 183.2

The financial statements on pages 11 to 51 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board and were signed on its
behalt by

R.A, Legge

Director

Date 2™ Cckober 017

Company Number: 11278510

The notes on pages 18 to 51 form part of these financial statemerts,



Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Company Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2018

Note 2018
£m
Assels
Non-current assets
Investments 16 227 .4
Other loans and receivables 20 284.8
Total non-current assets 512.2
Total assets 512.2
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Borrawings 22 289.4
Total non-current liabilities 289.4
Current liabilities
Trade and ather payables 21 5.8
Total current liabilities 5.8
Total liabilities 295.2
Net assets 217.0
Equity
Share capital 24 216.9
Accumulated losses 01
217.0

Shareholders' funds

The notes on pages 18 to 51 form part of these financial statements.

No profit and loss account is presented by the Company, as permitied under section 408 of the Companies Act 2008. The
profit of the Company tor the period ended 31 December 2018 was £0.1m.

The financial statements on pages 11 to 51 were approved and authorised for issue by the Beard and signed on its behalf
by

R.A. Legge
Diractor
Date: "‘{

Ockober 2019
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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the period ended 31 December 2018 .

Note
Balance at 27 March 2018
Loss for the period
Other comprehensive expense 28

Total comprehensive expense for the period

Transactions with owners
Issue of share capital

Balance at 31 Dacemnber 2018

The notes on pages 18 to 51 form part of these financial statements.
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Share Accumulated Total
capital losses equity
£m £m Em

- (33.5) (33.5)

- (0.2) (0.2)

- (33.7) (33.7)

216.9 - 216.9
216.9 {33.7) 183.2




Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Company Statement of Changes in Equity
for the period ended 31 December 2018

Share Accumulated Total

Note capital losses equity

£m £m £m

Balance at 27 March 2018 - N N

Loss for the period - 0.1 0.1

Total comprehensive expense for the period - 0.1 0.1
Transactions with owners

Issue of share capital 216.9 - 216.9

Balance at 31 December 2018 216.9 0.1 217.0

The notes on pages 18 to 51 form part of these financial statements.
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Atalian Servest Holdings ‘Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the period ended 31 December 2018

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers

Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Cash generated from operations

Interest paid
Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Paymants for purchase of property, plant and equipment
Payment for equity investment in associate

Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment
Net cash outflow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings

Principal element of lease payments
Repayment of borrowings

Net cash inflow from financing actlvities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Net cash and cash equivalents at period end

The notes on pages 18 to 51 farm part of these financia! statements.
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Note 2018
£m
3926
(335.4)
572
(18.2)
30.0
14 (8.7)
16 (21.2)
26 {331.9)
1.1
{360.7)
22 3381
15 (3.2)
22 (5.0)
329.9
8.2
25 8.2




Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 31 December 2018

Accounting policies

General information

Atalian Servest Holdings Limited is a private limited company limited by shares that is incarporated and domiciled in the
United Kingdom. The address of the registered cffice is Servest House, Heath Farm Business Centre, Tut Hill, Fomham All
Saints, Bury St, Edmunds, Suffolk, IP28 6LG. The registered number of the Company is 11278510.

The financial statements are prepared in sterling which is the presentational currency of the Group and rounded to the
nearest £0.1 million except where otherwise indicated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Atalian Servest Holdings Limited have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (IFRSs as adopted by the EU) and
interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC), and the Companies Act 2008 as applicable o
companies using IFRS. The company financial statements of Atalian Servest Holdings Limited have been prepared in
accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework’ and the Companies Act 2006 as

applicable to companies using FRS 101,

The consolidated and company financial statements have been prepared an the going concern basis under the historical
cast convantion except for the following items, both of which are accounted for at fair value:

- Contingent consideration

- Derivatives

- Net defined benefit pension scheme asset

The consolidated financial statements include the results of all subsidiaries of Atalian Servest Holdings Limited as listed on
page 37 to 39.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS and FRS 101 requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies.
The estimates and judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities are set out in note 2. The Directors consider that the accounting policies set out below are the most appropriate.

IAS 1 permits an entity to present additional information for specific items to enable users to assess the underlying financial
performance. In practice these items are commenly referred to as ‘'specific’ or ‘'non-underlying’ items although such
terminology is not defined in IFRS and accordingly there is a level of judgement required in determining what items to
separately identify. The Board has adopted a policy to separately disclose those items that it considers are outside the
underlying operating results for the particular period under review and against which the Group’s performance Is assessed

Items within non-underlying include intangible amortisation, asset impairments, contingent consideration movernents,
acquisition expenses and specific non-recurring items in the statement of profit or loss which, in the Directors’ judgement,
need to be disclosed separately {see note 8) by virtue of their nature, size and incidence in order for users of the financial
statements to obtain a proper understanding of the financial information and the underlying performance of the business.

This policy is reviewed by the Board of Directors an an on-going basis.

The Company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS 101:

- The requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures;

-  Therequirements of paragraphs 91 to 89 of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement;

- The requirements of the second sentence of paragraph 110 and paragraphs 113(a), 114, 115, 118, 119(a) fo (c),
120 to 127 and 129 of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers;
The requirements of paragraphs 10{d), 10(f), 16, 38A, 388, 38C, 38D, 40A, 408, 40C, 40D, 111 and 134 to 136 of
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements;
- The requirements of IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows;
The requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors;
- The requirements of paragraphs 17 and 18A of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures; and
The requirements of paragraphs 130(f)(ii}, 130(f)(iii), 134(d) to 134(f) and 135(c) to 135(e) of |IAS 36 Impairment of

Assets.

Equivalent disclosures are given in the consolidated financial statements of Atalian Servest Holdings Limited.
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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financiat Statements
For the period ended 31 December 2018

Accounting policies (continued)
New and amended standards adopted by the Group in the period ended 31 December 2018

(i IFRS 16

The Group has early adopted IFRS 16 Leases using the madified retrospective approach from 27 March 2018. The
accounting policy is discussed in detail under the heading Leases below, This early adoption has led to an increase in
right-of-use assets of £10.5m and lease liabilities of £11.4m as at 31 Decembar 2018 compared 1o if the standard had
not been early adopted.

New standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted

+ Clarifications to IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers'
» Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28

+ Amendments to IFRS 8

« Amendments to IAS 28

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, it is not practica! ta provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
new and revised IFRSs and related interpretations stated above that are in issus but not yet effective. Any future impact is
not anticipated to be material.

Going concern

The Group made a loss for the pericd. However, this performance is being funded through the Company's treasury
arrangement with other La Financiére Atalian 5.A.5 group companies which enables the Company to meet its liabilities as
they fall due. The Group has received a letter of support from its ultimate parent company, La Financiére Atalian 5.A.S.

On the basis of their assessment of the Group’s financial position, including the availability of funding from the treasury
function managed by the ultimate parent company, the Directors have reasonable expectations that the Group wili be able
o continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Group and Company therefore continue to adopt the
geing concern basis in preparing their financial statements.
Basis of consolidation
(i)  Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has controi over the financial and operating policies so as to
obtain benefit from their aclivities. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the dafe on which control is fransferred
until the date that control ceases. The Company is an investes if all three of the following elements are present:
power over the investee, exposure 1o variable retumns from the investee and the ability of the investor to use its
power to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there
may be a change in any of these elements of control. Non-controlling interests are recognised on subsidiaries
where the Group does not have 100% ownershig.
)  Gooawill
Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill arising on consclidation represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
a subsldiary, associate or joint venture at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is recognised as an asset and reviewed
for impairment at least annually. Any impairment is recognised immediately in the consolidated staternent of profit
or loss and is not subsequently reversed.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those
cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business cembination
in which the goodwill arose.

Contingent consideration ig included in cost at its acquisition date fair value and, in the casa of contingent
consideration classified as a financial Hability, remeasured subsequently through profit or foss. All direct costs of
acquisition are recognised immediately as an expense in the statement of profit or loss.

On disposal of a subsidiary, associate or joint venture, the atiributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 31 December 2018

Accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(i}

(i)

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration for acquisition is
measured at the fair values of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the
Company in order to obtain control of the acquire (at the date of exchange). Costs incurred in connection with the
acquisition are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.

Where a business combination is achieved in stages, previously held interest in the acquiree are remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date {date the Group obtains control) and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

Adjustments are made to fair values to bring the accounting pclicies of acquired businesses into alignment with
those of the Group. The costs of integrating and reorganising acquired businesses are charged to the post

acquisition profit or loss.

If the initial accounting is incomplete at the reporting date, provisional amounts are recorded. These amounts are
subsequently adjusted during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised when new
information about its existence is obtained during the period.

Acquisitions or disposals of non-controlling interests which do not affect the parent company's control of the
subsidiary are accounted for as transactions with equity holders. Any difference between the amount paid or
received and the change in non-controlling interests is racognised diractly in equity. Adjustments can only be made
up to 12 months after the acquisition date.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intragroup balances and any gains and losses or income and expenses arising from intragroup transactions, are
eliminated in preparing the consolldated financial information. Losses are eliminated in the same way as gains but

only to the extant that there is no evidence of impairment.

Property, plant and equipment
All property, plant and equipment assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is provided to write off the cost, less residual value, on & straight-line basis
over the estimated useful life.

* & & & 0

Freshold land and buildings 50 years

Shori-term leasehold property QOver the period of the lease
Plant and machinery 2-5 years

Motor vehicles 4-5 years

Computer equipment 2-5years

Fixtures and fittings 2-10 years

Residual values, remaining useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed annually and adjusted if appropriate.

Gains or losses on disposal are included within the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.
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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the perlod ended 31 December 2018

Accounting policies (continued)

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assessas whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A cantract is, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys the right ta contral the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
To assess whether a contract conveys the right 1o control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether:

- the contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly and should be
physically distinct of represent substantially a)l of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a
substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

- the Group has the right to obtain substantially afl of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the
period of use; and

- the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Group has this right when it has the decision-making
rights that are most relevant te changing how and for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where the
decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Group has the right to direct the
use of the asset if either:

o the Group has the right to operate the asset; or
o the Group designad the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be ussd.

The Group recognises right~of-use assets and lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is
initially measured at cost, which comuprises the initiat amaunt of the lease liability adjusted for any lease paymants made at
or before the commencemant date, plus any additional direct costincurred and an estimate of costs fo dismantte and remove
the underiying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier
of the end of tha usefu! life of the right of use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated usefu! lives of right-of-use
assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is
periodically reduced by impairment Josses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease fiability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease of, if that rate cannct be readily determined, the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. This is determinad
as the rate of interest the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
- fixed payments, Inctuding in-substance fixad payments

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. it is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Group's estimats of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease lfability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in ‘property, plant and
equipment’ and lease liabilities in ‘finance lease liabilities' in the statement of financial position.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents comprise short-term, highiy liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. An investment with a maturity of three months or less is normally
classified as being short-term.

in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts and invoice discounting facilities.
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the statement of financial position.

Inventories

inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due allowance for obsolete and slow-moving
stocks. Cost Is determined using the first in, first cut method.
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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the period ended 31 December 2018

Accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assats

Intangible assets other than goodwill (please see above) are shown at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses.

Intangible assets are recognised on business combinations if they are separable from the acquired entity or give rise to other
contractuallegal rights, The amounts ascribed to such intangibles are arrived at by using appropriate valuation techniques
(see section related to critical estimates and judgements below).

Amortisation is charged to the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
intangible asset. The amortisation expense is included within the administrative expenses line in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Intangible assels are amortised from the date they are available for use. The useful lives are as follows:

* Softwarg 10 years
«  Customer base and reputation 10 years
» Trade name 5 years

= Regional licences 20 years

Amortisation periods and methods are reviewed annually and adjusted if appropriate.

Impairment of assets

The Group assesses annually whether there is any indication that any of its assets have been impaired. If such indication
exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated and compared fo its carrying value.

When the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset or cash-generating
unit is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing vatlue in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses relating to continuing operation are
recognised in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset unless the asset is carried at the
ravalued amount (in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease).

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

For goodwill, the recoverable amount is assessed annually and whenever there is an indication of impairment. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset doas not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those fram other assets or groups of
assets and the asset's value in use cannot be estimated tc be close to its fair value. In such cases the asset is tested for
impairment as part of the cash generating unit to which it belongs. For the purpose of impairment testing goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash generating units expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. 'f the recoverable amount of the cash generating unity is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

Investments

Investments in subsidiaries are recorded at cost less accumulated impairment losses, which is the fair value of the
consideration paid. Investments in joint ventures are initially measured at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition

change in the Group's share of net asssts.

Investments in subsidiaries are assessed annually for impairment, or when any indicators of impairment are identified. The
same process is followed as described in Impairment of assets above.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control have the rights to the net assets of the
arrangement. The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are incorporated in the Group's consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in joint ventures are ¢arried in the
consclidated statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for the Group's share of the net assets in the joint venture,
less any impairment in the value of the investment. The Group's share of post-tax profits or losses in recognised in the
consalidated profit and toss account.
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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 31 December 2018

Accounting policies {continued)

Assoclates

Where the Group has the power fo padticipate in (but not centrol) the financial and operating policy decisions of another
entity, it is classified as an associate. Associates are initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost. Subsequentiy associates are accounted for using the equity method, where the Group’s share of post-acquisition
profits and iosses and other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss and other
comprehansive Income (except for losses In excess of the Group's investment in the associate unless there is an obligation
to make good those losses).

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group and its associales are recognised only to the extent of
unrelated investors' interests in the associate. The investor's share in the associate’s profits and losses resulting from these
transactions is eliminated against the carrying value of the associate. Any premium paid for an associate above the fair
value of the Group's share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included
in the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is objective evidence that the investment In an associate has been
impaired the carrying amount of tha investment is tested for impairment in the same way as other non-financial assets.

Financial instruments

IFRS 9 uses an expected credit loss model for recognising impairment of financial assets held at amortised cost. This
requires the group to consider forward-looking information to calculate expected credit losses regardiess of whether thera
has been an impairment trigger.

Under IFRS 9 only assets which consist solely payments of principal and interest ('SPPI') can be recorded at amertised cost.
Ail financial asssts held by the Group are SPP! and can therefore be subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at fair value on the date on which a derivative confract is entered into
and are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative. Please see note 29 for further details.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are initiaily measured at their transaction price if they do not contain a significant financing compoenent,
which is the case for substantially all trade receivables. The loss allowance Is measured at an amount equal o lifetime
expected credit losses. Those are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of those trade receivables, using a provision matrix that takes into account historical information on defaults adjusted for
the forward-iooking information per customer. When a trade receivable is considered uncoliectable, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries af amaounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

The carrying amount of trade receivables includes receivables which ara subject to a factoring arrangement. Under this
arrangement, the Group has transferred the relevant receivables to the factor in exchange for cash and is prevented from
seliing or pledging the receivables. However, the Group has retained credit risk and therefore continues te recognise the
transferred assets in their entirety in the statement of financial position. The amount repayable under the agreement is

presented in current borrowings.

Due 1o the shart-term nature of the current receivables, their carrying amaunt is considered to be the same as their fair
value.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are stated at their criginal invoiced value, as the interest that would be recognised from discounting future
cash payments over the short payment period is not considered to be material.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest methed. The effective interest method
is a method of caiculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant pericd.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the

financial liability.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisitions, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the assets for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sala. Other finance costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 31 December 2018

Accounting policies (continued)

Retirement benefits

The Group operates both defined contribution plans and defined benefit plans. A defined contribution plan is one where the
Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. These contributions are expensed in the period in which they accrue.

The terms of the defined benefit pension plan define the amount that employesas will receive on retirement. These amounts
are dependent on factors such as age, years of service and compensation, and are determined independently of the
contributions payable or the investments of the scheme. The defined benefit asset or liability recognised in the statement of
financial position is the difference between the present value of the defined benefit obligations and the fair value of the plan

assets,

The defined benefit obligation is calculated by independent actuaries using the project unit cost method. Actuarial gains and
losses are recognised in full in the period in which they ocour within the statement of comprehensive income.

As a result of its outsourcing contracts with education authorities, the Group abtains Admitted Body status in a number of
Local Authority final salary pension schemes in respect of a number of designated employees for the duration of the
outsourcing contract. The Group pays employer contributions as determined each paricd by the relevant scheme based on
the scheme actuary’s recommendation in order to maintain an ongoing fuily funded status, but under the terms of the
Admission Agreements with certain authorities the Group Is protected {by bond, guarantees or indemnity) from the risk of
previous underfunding or additional liabilities arising on early retirement or redundancy. The assets of the scheme are heid
separately from those of the Group in independent Trust Funds administered by the relevant Local Authorities. Although
notional allocations of assets are made in some schemes, the Group does not have specific information about its share of
the underlying assets and liabilities of the schemes or the extent of any deficits in those schemes. Given the nature of the
Group's membership in these multi-emplayer final salary schemes, contributions are accounted for as if they were defined
contribution schemes, the profit and loss charge being based on contributions payables in respect of the accounting period.

Revenue

The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control over a product or service to its customer. Revenue is measured
based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer, net of value added tax and trade discounts. Where the
consideration is variable, the amount recognised is highly probable not to suffer significant reversal in future,

The Group's activities are wide-ranging, and as such, depending on the nature of the product or service delivered and the
timing of when control is passed to the customer, the Group will account for revenue over time and at a point in time.
Additional details of revenue recognition on a divisional basis is as follows:

() Cleaning
Contracts for Cleaning services typically require the provision of a group of interrelated goods and services to the
customer over a period of time. Such goods and services are typically considered to represent a single performance
obligation as each promise is satisfied over the same period, For the majority of the Group’s conftracts, invoices are
raised in the month or months after the delivery of the sarvices. Where Cleaning services are provided outside of
contractual arangements and are one-off in nature, revenue is recognised at the point in time those services are

dalivered.
(i) Catering
Contracts for Catering services can require the provision of goods to the customer, considered to be a single

performance obligation. Revenue is recognised at a peint in time when control passes to the customer. For these
contracts, payment is received when the goods are provided.

Alternatively, contracts for Catering services can require the provision of a group of interrelated goods and services
to the customer over a period of time. Such goods and services are typically considered to represent a single
performance obligation as each promise is satisfied over the same period. For the majority of these contracts,
invoices are raised in the month or months after the delivery of the services.
fiii) Security

Contracts for Security services relates to guarding services and the installation of supporting goods such as access
control systems, CCTV and biometric equipment. In contracts that include the outright sale of equipment, revenue in
respect of the sale and installation is recognised at a point in time when the goods have been installed. Guarding
services represents a series of services with a constant pattern of transfer to the customer over time. Revenue in
respect of such services is recognised over the period of the contract. For the majority of the Group's contracts,
invoices are raised in the month or months after the delivery of the services.
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Accounting policies (continued)

Revenue (continued)
{v) Initegrated Solutions

Contracts for Integrated Solutions sarvices typically require the provision of a group of interrefated goods and services
to the customer over a period of time. Such goods and services are typically considerad to represent a single
performance obligation as each promise is satisfied over the same period. For the majority of the Group's contracts,
invaices are raised in the month or months after the delivery of the services.

(v) Technical Services

Contracts for Technical Serviges typically require the provision of a group of interrelated goods and services to the
customer over a period of time. Such goods and services are typically considered to represent a single performance
obligation as each promise is satisfied over the same period. For the majority of the Group's contracts, invoices are
raised in the month or manths after the delivery of the services. Costs are recognised as incurred and revenue is
recognised on the basis of the proportion of total costs at the reporting date to the estimated total costs of the contract.

(vi} Projects
Contracts for Projects typically relate to construction and building works. Costs are recognised as incurred and

revenue is recognised on the basis of the proportion of total costs at the reporting date to the estimated fotal costs of
the contract.

{vii) Conlract assets and liabilitics

A contract assel is recognised when revenue recognised on an individual contract exceeds the amounts billed on
that contract to date. Contract assets are raduced by sppropriate loss allowances. Where cash received from a
customer for an individual contract exceeds the revenue recognised, the amount is included in contract liabilities,

Non-underlying items

The following are disclosed separately as non-underlying items in order to provide a clear indication of the Group’s underlying
performance:

~  Acguisition costs

~  Redundancy and other costs

- Amortisation of acquired intangibles

- Amortised debt costs
Please see note 8 for further explanation of these categories.

Income tax and deferred taxation

Deferred tax is ptovided on all temporary differences between the {ax bases of assets and liabliities and their carrying

amounts for financial reporting purposes, except when:
« the defarred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and that, at the time of the transaction, does not affect either accounting profit or

taxable income, or

+ the 1axable temporary difference is associated with invesiments in subsidiaries, associates or interest in joint
ventures and the timing of the reversal of the {emporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary different will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be available to utilise the deferred tax asset.

Unrecognised deferred tax assels are reassessed at each statement of financial position date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable income will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised, or the liability is settled, using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Income taxes relating to items recognised direcily in equity are recognised in equity and not in the Consolidated Statement
of Profit or Loss.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if a legally enforceabls right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to the same taxable entity and taxation authority.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Group has three types of financial assets that are subject to the expected credit loss medel:
- trade receivables for sales of inventory and from the provision of services;
- contract assets relating to long term projects contract;
- Other receivables relating to loans to associates carried at amortised cost.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplifiad approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected ioss
allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables and
contract assets have been grouped based ¢n shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The contract assets
relate to unbilled work in progress and have substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same

types of contract.

An impairment loss for other receivables measured at amortised costs is recognised for expected losses when there is an
increased probability that the counterparty will be unable to settle the contractual cash flows on the contractual due dates,
a rgduction in the amounts expected to be recovered or both. Where there has been a significant increase in exposure to
credit risk since initial recognition, a 12-month expected credit loss allowance is estimated, representing the portion of the
asset's lifetime expected credit losses that is attributable to a default event that is possible within the next 12 months. The
probability of default and expected amounts recoverable are assessed using reasonable and supportable past and forward-
locking information that is available with undue cost or effort. The expected credit loss is a probability weighted amount
determined from a range of outcomes and takes into account the time value of money.

Critical accounting judgements and estimates

The Group makes estimates and judgements conceming the future. The estimates and judgements that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment 1o the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are discussed below:

Estimates
Defined benefit pension scheme

Refer to note 28 for disclosure of the key sources of estimation uncertainty relating to the retirement benefit obligation.
Management consider the key estimates to be longevity, discount rate and future salary increases as these could cause a

materal impact to the defined benefit obligation.
Measurement of intangible assets on acquisition

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are required to be recognised separately from goodwill and amortised
over their useful life if they are subject to contractual or legal rights or are separately transferable and their fair value can be
reliably estimated. The Group has separately recognised customer relationships, order backlog and trade names based on
contractual agreements in acquisitions made. The fair value of these acquired intangible assets is based on valuation
techniques that involve the use of future growth rates, discount rates and expected inflation rates. The valuation models
require input based on assumptions about the future. The Directors use their best knowledge to estimate fair value of

acquired intangible assets as of the acquisition date.

Revenue recognition

The Group's revenue recognition policies are central to how the Group values the work it has carried out in each financial
period. These policies require forecasts to be made of the cutcomes of long-term construction services which require
estimates to be made of both cost and income recognition on each contract. On the cost side, estimates of forecasts are
made on the final cut-lurn of each contract in addition to potential costs to be incurred for any maintenance and defects
liabilities. Cne the income side, estimates are made on variations to consideration which typically include variations due to
changes in scope of work, recoveries of claim income from customers, and potential liquidated damages that may be levied
by the customer. Estimates are reviewed regularly throughout the contract life based on latest available information and

adjustments made where necessary,

Given the pervasive nature of estimates on ravenus, cost of sales and related balance sheet amounts, it is difficult to quantify
the impact of takin alternative assessments on each of the estimates above.

26



Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 31 December 2018

Critical accounting judgements and estimates (continued)

Judgements

Revenus recognition

The Group's revenue recognition policies require judgement fo be made with regards to identification of performance
obligations within long term contracts. A significant number of these contracts relate to construction or building works, and
management have made a judgement that the input method is the most appropriate basis for revenue racognition for these
contracts. These contracts also often include an element of variable consideration and management are required ic make
judgements of the point in time when the variable consideration is highly probable not to suffer significant reversal in future.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred taxes are recognised in respect of temporary differences between the tax treatment and treatment within the
financial statements for assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent they are expected to be
recovered. Recoverability is assessed on an ongoing basis. Deferred tax is calculated at the substantively enacted rate
which is expected to appiy in the period the asset or liability is expected to be realised. The recognition of deferred tax assets
is based upon whether it is probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available in the future against which the reversat of
temporary differences can be used. Where the temporary differences relate to losses, the availability of the losses to offset
against forecast taxable profits is also considered.

Impairment testing

The Group also tests for impairment of goodwill when a trigger event occurs or annually as appropriate. The impairment
review is performed by projecting the future cash flows, excluding finance and tax, based upon budgets and plans and
making appropriate judgements about rates of growth and discounting these using a rate that takes into account the time
value of money and the risk inherent in the business. If the present value of the projected cash flows is less than the carrying
value of the underlying net assets and related goodwill an impairment charge would be taken to the statement of profit or
loss unless the fair value less cost of disposal of the related asset is higher than the carrying value.

Non-underlying items

'Non-underlying items’ are items of financial performance which the Group believes should be separately identified on the
face of the statement of profit or loss to assist in understanding the underlying financial performance achieved by the Group.
Determining whether an item is part of other items or not requires judgement. Other items before tax of £26.5m were charged
te the statement of profit or loss for the period ended 31 December 2018, An analysis of the amounts included in ctheritems
ig detailed in note 8.

Revenue

3(a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services over time and at a point in time in the following major
service lines and geographical regions.

Technical Integrated
Cleaning Catering Security Projects Services Solutions Other Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Primary geographical market
United Kingdom 157.8 81.8 30.6 104.1 48.8 40.1 1.8 465.0
Republic of lreland 1.1 0.6 - - B - - 1.7
Europe - - - - - 17.8 - 17.8
158.9 824 30.6 104.1 48.8 57.9 18 484.5
Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time 8.9 49.0 09 4.0 - - 1.8 64.6
Qver time 150.0 33.4 297 100.1 48.8 57.9 - 419.9
158.9 82.4 30.6 104.1 48.8 57.9 1.8 484.5
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Revenue (continued)
3(b) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers
The Group has recognised the following assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

2018 2018

Contract Contract

assets Liabilities

£m £m

Cleaning 10.5 -

Security 5.0 (0.1)

Catering 0.5 -
Projects 12.4 (5.8)
Tachnical Services 12.6 {7.9}
Integrated Sclutions - 0.4)
Other 041 (0.1)
41.1 (14.3)

The contract assets primarily related to the Group's right to consideration for work completed but net hilled at the reporting
date on Cleaning, Security, Projects and Technical Services contracts. The contract assets are transferred to receivables

when the rights become unconditional.

The contract liabilites primarily relate to the advance consideration received from customers for Projects and Technicai
Services contract, for which revenue is recognised on completion of the relevant contract. Immaterial impairment has been

noted on the contract assets.

Contracl assets and contract liabilities have increased from nil at the start of the period due to the acquisition of Atalian
Servest Group Holdings Limited {formerly Servest Limited} in the period as well as organic growth in the Cleaning, Security,
Projects and Technical Services divisions post acquisition.

3(b)(i) Unsatisfied long-term contracts

The following table includes revenue expected to be recognised in the future related to performance obligations that are
unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) at 31 December 2018.

2019 2020 2021 Total

£m £m £m £m

Projects 48.6 0.2 - 488

Technical Services 19.4 3.2 1.4 240

Operating profit

2018

Group operating profit for the period is stated after the following: £m

Staff costs {note 6) 288.2

Amortisation of intangible assets 5.0
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets:

- owned by the group 6.8

- held under leases 30

Subcontractor costs 56.2

Consumables 90.4
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Auditors’ remuneration
2018
Em
Fess payable o the Group's auditors for the audit of the company's financial 13
statements .
Fees payable to the Group's auditors in respect of non-audit services:
- preparation of the financial statements -
- the auditing of the financial statements of subsidiaries of the company _
pursuant tc legislation
~ other services relating to taxation -
- all other non-audit services not included above 0.1
14
Staff costs
2018
Group £m
Wages and salaries 267.5
Social security costs 18.8
Other pension ¢osts - defined contribution schemes 33
Other pension costs ~ defined benefit schemes 0.2
289.8
The staff costs for the Company for the period were £nil.
The average monthly number of employees, including the Directors, during the period was as follows:
Group 2018
Operational staff 25,469
Administration and management 2,925
Directors 5
28,399
No employees were employed directly by the Company during the period.
Directors’ remuneration
2018
Group £m
Remuneration 0.3
0.3

The costs of certain Directors’ services are borne by La Financiére Atalfan §.A.S, the ultimate parenl company. The
Director's services provided to the Group are considered incidental to the services performed for the rest of group headed
by La Financiére Atalian S.A.S.

Highest paid Director

The highest paid Director received remuneration of £309,000. The value of the Group's pension contributions paid to a
defined contribution pension scheme in respect of the highest paid Director amounted to £29,000.
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Non-underlying items

2018

Group £m
Acquisition costs 6.4
Redundancy and other costs 1.6
8.0

Amortisation of acquired intangibles 5.0
13.0

Administrative expenses

Amortisation of acquired intangibles: the Group carries in its statement of financial position significant balances related
to acquired intangible assets. The amortisation of these assets are reported separately as they distort the in period trading
resuils and performance of the acquired businesses is assessed through the underlying operational results.

Acquisition costs: the costs incurred with acquisitions are not included in the assessment of business performance which
is based on the underlying results. IFRS requires certain costs incurred in connection with acquired businesses to be
recorded within the Group statement of profit or loss. These charges are not included in the internal assessment of business
performance which is based on the underlying operational resuits. These charges are therefore separately disclosed as non-
underlying.

Redundancy and other costs: redundancy payments made to employees relate to one-off costs of organisation change
associated with the Group's efficiency and change policies and do not relate to the underlying business perfarmance.

2018

Group £m
Accelerated amortised borrowing costs 6.0
Penalty repayment fee 7.5
13.5

Finance costs

Accelerated amortised borrowing costs: as part of raising finance, certain costs related fo the financing are capitalised
and reloased to the statement of profit or loss equally over the length of the loan. Amounts that are repaid early due to
rafinancing do not represent the trus underlying finance cost due to the acceleration of payment and are therefore presented

as non-underlying.

Penalty reapayment fae: the Group repaid all of its third party borrowing during the period ended 31 December 2018. As a
result of this, an early repayment penalty was payable. This does not represent the true underlying finance cost of the Group
and has therefore been presented as non-underlying.

Finance costs

2018
Group £m
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts 1.1
Loan note and other interest 13.0
Interest on leases and hire purchase contracts 0.6
Amortised borrowing costs 135
28.2

Finance income
2018
Group £m
Interest on other loans and receivables 03
Other interest income 0.2
0.5
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income tax

2018
Group £m
Deferred tax
Criginalion and reversal of temporary differences (3.7}
Total deferred tax {note 23) {3.7)
Total taxation credit (3.7)

The tax assessed for the period differs from the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 18%. The differences are
explained below:

2018
£m
Loss before taxation (37.2)
Loss before taxation multipited by the rate of corporation tax of 19% {7.1)
Effects of;
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 4.4
Deferred tax effect of change in taxation rates 0.3
Non-taxable income {1.3}
Total taxation credit (3.7}

The expenses not deductible in the period is mainly due fo the tax effect of the corporate interest restriction on the Group.

At 31 Dacember 2018, the Group had taxable losses of approximately £13.1m available for offset against future taxable
profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised on tax losses of £2.2m in the period for which the future utifisation of these

loses is considered probable.

The applicable tax rate for the period is 19% following the reduction of the main rate of UK corporation tax from 20% to 19%
with effect from 1 April 2017.

A reduction to the corporation tax rate to 17% (effective 1 April 2020) was substantively enacted an 9 September 2016.

This will reduce the Group’s future current tax charge accordingly and reduce the deferred tax asset at 31 December 2018
{which has been calculated based on the expected long-term rate of 17% substantively enacted at the balance sheet date).
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Intangible assets

Group
Cost

At 27 March 2018
Additions on acquisition
At 31 December 2018

Accumulated amortisation
At 27 March 2018
Charge for the period

At 31 December 2018

Net book amount
At 31 December 2018

The average remaining amortisation periods at 31 December 2018 is:

Software 8 years
Customer base and reputation B years
Regional licenses 9 years
Goodwill

Group

Cost

At 27 March 2018
Recognised on acquisition of subsidiaries
At 31 December 2018

Customer

base and Regional
Software reputation licenses Total
£m £m £m £m
1.5 65.1 0.2 66.8
1.5 65.1 0.2 66.8
0.1 4.9 - 50
0.1 4.9 - 5.0
1.4 60.2 0.2 618
Goodwilt
£m
369.3
369.3

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash generating units {'CGUs'} identified according to the operations being performed.

The goodwill associated with the Group's Cleaning operation is £124.1m, the Security operation is £4.2m, the Catering
operation is £94.8m), the Technical Services/Projects operation is £105.0m and the Integrated Solutions operation £41.2m.
The recoverable amount of all of the Group's operations CGUs is determined based on the value in use calculations using
cash flow projections based on financial budgets and long-range plans approved by management covering a four-year period
which are prepared as part of the Group's normal planning process. The Group considers that a four-year period is a suitable
length of assessment given the strength of the customer relationships it holds and the reputation that it has built up in the

marketplace.
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Goodwill (continued)

Other major assumptions are as follows:

Technical

Services/ integrated
2018 Cleaning Security Catering Projects Sofutions
Discount rate % B.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5
1 ta 4-year growth rate % 5 5 5 5 5
Long-term growth rate % 2 2 2 2 2

The growth rates used are based on both historical growth rates achieved by the operations and expected future growth
rates based on the medium-term strategy for the business and opportunities in the marketplace. The long-term growth rate
is used to calculate the terminal value of the CGU in perpetuity. The post-tax discount rate is based on the Group's weighted
average cost of capital adjusted for specific risks relating 1o the relevant sector.

The Group is reguired to test, on an annual basis, whether goodwill has suffered any impairment, The recoverable amount
is determined based on value in use calculations. The use of this method requires the estimation of future cash fiows and
the determination of a discount rate in order to calculate the present value of the cash flows.

If the 1 to 4-year growth rates were to reduce by 0.5% or the discount rate were to increase by 0.5%, thare would still be no
fndication of impairment. The Group is exposed to economic developments in the United Kingdom and to the uncertainties
related to Brexit, Since the majority of the Group's activities are carried out within the United Kingdom, the Graup considers
that a possible absence of a commercial and/or customs agreement between the UK and the European Union would not
have a significant direct impact on the Group’s operation. For this reason, the impairment test did not give rise to a
complementary sensitivity test,

Property, piant and equipment

Freshold Short-term Fixtures

land and leasehold Plant and Motor Computer and
Group buildings property machinery vehicles equipment fittings Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 27 March 2018 - - - - - -
Additions at cost - 1.9 48 6.0 2.1 1.5 16.3
Additions on acquisition 3.1 39 13.1 6.0 26 3.1 31.8
Disposals - - {4.0} (2.9) - - (68.9)
At 31 December 2018 31 5.8 13.9 9.1 47 46 41.2
Accumnulated Depreciation
At 27 March 2018 - - - - - - -
Charges for the period - 0.8 4.1 2.8 1.2 0.9 9.8
Disposals - - {3.8) {2.0) - - {5.8)
At 31 December 2018 - 0.8 0.3 0.8 1.2 0.9 4.0
Net book amount
At 31 December 2018 31 50 138 8.3 35 37 37.2
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Leases
Property, plant and equipment comprise owned and leased assets that do not meet the definition of investment property.
2018
Group £m
Property, plant and equipment owned 26.7
Right-of-use assets 10.5
37.2

The Group leases many assets including land and building, vehicles, machinary and IT equipment. Information about leases
for which the Group is a lessee is presented below.

Right-of-use assets Property Vehicles Other Total
Group £m £m £m £m
Balance at 27 March 2018 - - - -
Additions on acquisition 3.3 2.4 0.1 58
Additions for the period 1.5 58 0.4 7.7
Depreciation charge for the period (0.9} (1.9) (0.2} (3.0)
Balance at 31 December 2018 39 6.3 0.3 10.5

Additions on acquisition relate to the right-cf-use assets acquired as part of the acquisition of Atalian Servest Group Holdings
Limited (formerly Servest Limited} during the period.

Lease liabilities 2018
Group £m
Maturity analysis - contraclual undiscounted cash flows

Less than one year 4.7
One to five years 75
More than five years 11
Total undiscounted iease liabilities at 31 December 133

Lease liabiiities included in the sfatement of financial position at 31 December

Current 42
Non-current 7.2
114

There are no formal extension options within the Group’s portfolio of leases. Early break termination options are included in
a number of property leases. The right-of use asset and lease liability are caiculatad with reference to the early break date
unless it is reasconably certain that these termination options are not going to be executed.

Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss 2018
Group £m
Interest on lease liabilities 0.6
Amounts recognised in statement of cash flows 2018
Group £m
Total cash outflow for leases (3.8)
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Investments

The following entity is an associate of the Group and has been included in the consoclidated financial statements using the
equity method and in the single entity financial statements at cost:

Proportion of
Group ownership
interest held

Country of
Name incorporation Currency 2018
Bottega Investco S.ARL The Netherlands Euro 27.9%

The primary business of Bottega Investco S.A R.L is that of a holding company for a group of companies that provides IT
services globally. The investment will give the Group access to additional service lines across new geographical greas in
lins with the strategy of the Group. Since the Group’s acquisition of the minority stake, Bottega Investco S.A R.L has incurred
targe amounts of restructuring costs related to the new ownership structure. These are one-off in nature and are not expected
to continue in future years. No quoted fair value price of the associate is available

There is a restriction in place relating to the distribution of dividends to investors govemed by an equity warrant in place. A
put/call option over the shares exists involving the other investors. For further details on contractuat relationships with other
investors please see note 29.

Reconciliation to carrying amounts

Place of Nature of Measurement Carrying
Name of entity business % Ownership relationship method amount
£m
. - United . .
Atalian Servest JV Limited . 50% Joint venture Equity method -
i o Kingdom
galf:nlcas Logisticas Sistemas e Ingeneria Spain 50% Joint venture Equity method .
Aktrion Incaontrol SP. Z0.0 Poland 50% Joint venture Equity method B
Aktrion Automotive S.A.R.L Morocco 50% Joint venture Equity method -
Aktrion Unicov Automotive Private Limited India 50% Joint venture Equity method -
Aktrion K&S Quality Solutions (Chang Zhou) : : .
Co. Limited China 50% Joint venture Equity method -
Aktrion L.atam S.A. Uruguay 50% Joint venture Equity method -
A The o ] .
Bottega Investco S AR.L Netherlands 27.90% Associate Equity method 78.3

78.3

There are no quoted fair value prices in respect of any of the above joint ventures. A fair vaiue exercise was undertaken on
9 May 2018 using observable intemal inputs based on management assumption to value the asscciate as part of the
business combination as described in note 26, and as such the valuation was classified under Level 3 of the IFRS 13 Fair
value hierarchy. On this date the valus of the associate was determined to have a fair value of £67.7m. Management have
reviewed the value of the associate at the reporting date and are of the view that no impairment is required.

The profit and net assets of the other joint ventures are highly immaterial to the Group, and therefore financial information
in relation to these entities have not been disclosed.

In July the Group increased its investment in Bottega Investco S.A R.L from 27,4% to 27.9% in doing so introducing additional
capital of £20.5m,
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A reconciliation of the carrying amount of the associate is set out below:

Opening net assets at date acquired
Profit for the period {(May - June)
Loss for the period (July - Dec)
Capital introduced

Net assets at 31 December 2018

Group share %

Group share in £
Implied goodwill

The capital intreduction was financed via inter-group debt from the Group’s parent company.

Summarised financial information

Bottega Investco S.AR.L*

As at 31 December
Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Period ended 31 December
Revenues
Loss from continuing operations
Total comprehensive expenditure

Bottega Investco
SARL"
£m
(0.7)
1.9
{37.2)
185.4

1404

27.9%

417
36.6

78.3

2018
£m

320.0
6724
288.5
580.2

526.3
(35.3)}
(35.3)

* based on unaudited consolidated figures of PomGen Holdings B.V. for the 8 month period to 31 December 2018.

Balance at 27 March 2018
Agquired on business combination
Share of profits of asscciates
Capital introduction

Company
Cost
At 27 March 2018

Acquisition of subsidiaries
At 31 December 2018

Bottega Investco
S.ARL
£m

67.7
(9.9)
20.5

78.3

Investments in
subsidiary
companies

£m

227.4

2274

An impairment assessment was performed at the Company level and no impairment was noted. Included in the £227.4m

above are £5.7m of capitalised acquisition costs.
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The Company has guaranteed the liabilities of the following subsidiaries (with the exception of Atalian Servest Limited
(formarly Servest Group Limited)} in order that they qualify for the exemption from audit under Secticn 479A of the
Companies Act 2008 in respect of the period ended 31 December 2018:

Name Registered Class of Proportion of
address shares held ownership interest Principal activities
Subsidiary undertakings
Atalian Servest Group Holdings Servest House
Limited {farmerly Servest Bury St. Edmunds Ordinary 100% Helding company
L imited} Suffoik, P28 6LG
Atalian Servest Graup Limited Servest House :
(formerly Servest Group Bury St. Edmunds  Ordinary 100% Dormant holding
Holdings Limited)* Suffoik, IP28 6LG company
; S e Servest House Holding company,
“}f'n;fgﬂfeslffé ;'g“rggp Umiegy  BuryStEdmunds  Ordinary 100% facilities management
Suffolk, P28 6LG and group administration
Atalian Servest Security Limited Servest House
(formerly Servest Security Bury St. Edmunds Ordinary 100% Security services
Services Limitad)” Suffolk, P28 BLG
Searvest House .
Servest Ireland Limited* Bury St. Edmunds Ordinary 100% c Cleaning and
Suffolk, IP28 6LG atering servicas
Atalian Servest Food Co Limited* Servest House
{formerly Servest Food Co Bury St. Edmunds Ordinary 100% Catering services
timited) Suffoik, IPZ8 6L.G
Servest House
Catering Academy Limited” Bury St. Edmunds Crdinary 100% Catering services
Suffolk, IP28 BLG
. . Servest House
Unique Catering and Bu . o . .
- . ry St. Edmunds Ordinary 100% Catering services
Management Services Limited Suffolk, 1P28 6LG
- . 42 Dryden Road
fg«{:;tﬁuﬂdmg Services ryLt)iat'tht:—;ac‘ Ordinary 100% Dormant company
Midlothian, EH20 9LZ
Atalian Servest AMK Limited 42 Dryden Road
{formerly Servest Arthur McKay Loanhead Ordinary 100% Maintenamce services
Limited)* Midlothian, EH20 9LZ
42 Dryden Road
Arnthur McKay {UK) Limited* Loanhead Ordinary 100% Deormant company
Midlathian, EH2G 9LZ
Servest House
Thermotech Solutions Limited* Bury §t. Edmunds Ordinary 100% Maintenance services
Suffolk, 1P28 6LG
Servest House
Ensco 1194 Limited* Bury St. Edmunds Crdinary 100% Dormant company
Suffolk, IP28 6LG
Servest House
Fire and Air Services Limited” Bury St. Edmunds Ordinary 100% Holding company
Suffotk, 1P28 6LG
] ] Servest House
E;:{;;?fe‘:h Mechanical Services g\ 5t Edmunds Ordinary 100% Malntenance services
Suffolk, 1P28 6L.G
. - Sarvest House
I?;ig’;f%h Fire Protection Bury St, Edmunds Ordinary 100% Maintenance services
Suffolk, IP28 LG
Servest House
S?:.’;?ﬁd Technology Group Bury §t. Edmunds Ordinary 100% Maintenance services
Suffolk, P28 6LG
) I Seorvast House
gi‘wd Air Conditioning Bury St. Edmunds Ordinary 100% Darmant company
Suffolk, IP28 6L.G
Atalian Servest Pest Controi Servest House
Limited {formerly Servest Pest Bury 81, Edmunds Crdinary 100% Pest control services

Patrol Limited)*

Suifalk, P28 LG
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Investments (continued)

Subsidiary undertakings

Servest Aktrion Limited*

Aktrion Holdings Limited*

Aktrion Group Limited*

Aktrion GmpH*

Aktrion Manufacturing Support
Services Limited”

Aktricn 1berig SL*

Meta Management Services
Limited™

\QE Intarnational Limited™ “~=
Aktrion Poland SP. Z0.0"

Aktrion Hungary KFT*

Aktrion CZ S.R.O"

Aktrion Romania S.R.L*

Aktrion Portugal, Unipessoal
LDA*

Alpha Facilities Management
Limited”

Aktrion France SAS*

Servest House
Bury 5t. Edmunds
Suffolk, IP28 6L.G
Pemberton House

Stafford Court
Stafford Park
Telford, Shropshire
TF3 3BD
Pemberton House
Stafford Court
Stafford Park
Telford, Shropshire
TF3 3BD
Fuggerstralie 1h
DEU-04158
Leipzig

Germany
FPemberton House
Stafford Court
Stafford Park
Telford, Shropshire
TF3 3BD

P.1. Juan Carlos |
46440 Almussafes
Valencia

Spain

42 Dryden Road
Loanhead
Midlothian, EH20 9LZ
Pemberion House
Stafford Court
Stafford Park
Telford, Shropshire
TF3 380D

Ui Starni Stok 93
43-300 Bielsko Biala
Poiand

HU-2900 Komarom
Laktanya koz 30/A
Hungary

Cesky T&Sin
Smetanova 1912/15
PsC 737 01

48-52 |.C Bratianu
Boulevard

Pitesti

Romania

Rua Frei Joaquim de
Santa Rosa de
Viterbo

Viseu

Portugal
Pemberton House
Stafford Court
Stafford Park
Telford, Shropshire
TF3 3BD

58 Boulevard
Jacquard

62100 Calais
France
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Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Hoiding company

Helding company

Holding company

Automotive
quality controf

Automotive
Guality control

Automotive
quality contral

Manufacturing support,

logistics and facilities
managemant

Dormant company

Automotive
quality control

Automotive
quality control

Automative
quality control

Automotive
quality control

Automotive
quality control

Facilities management

Automotive
quality contral
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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 31 Dacember 2018

Investments (continued)

Subsidiary undertakings

Aktrion Sweden AB”

Kriowsley Polybagging Limited*

Aktrion Slovakia S.R.O*

Gasser Aktrion GmbH*

Aktrion Gasser UK Limited*

Joint ventures
Atalian Servest JV Limited
(formerly Atalian Servest
Limited{*)(**)
Tecnicas Logisticas Sistemas e
Inganeria S.1.*

Aktrion Incantrol SP. Z0.0*

Aktrion Autormotive S ARL*

Aktrion Unicov Autormotive
Private Limited*

Aktrion K&S Quality Solutions
(Chang Zhou) Ca. Limited*

Aktrion Latam S.A*
Associates
Bottega Investco 5.A R.L*

* denotes indirect holdings

Redagatan 9

426 77 Vastra
Fralunda

Sweden
Pemberton House
Stafford Court
Staffard Park
Telford, Shropshire
TF3 3BD
Piaristicka 2

94901 Nitra
Slovakia
uldwerkstrafle 11
4400 Steyr

Austria

Pemberton House
Stafford Court
Stafford Park
Telford, Shropshire
TF3 3BD

Servest Housa

Bury St. Edmunds
Suffolk, IP28 6LG
La Granja N°

6 46440
Almussafes Valencia
Spain

Ui Starni Stok 93
43-300 Bielsko Biaia
Poland

Bureau 303

Lot 43A

Tangier

Morocco

Senapati Bapat Road
Shivaji Nagar

Pune

india

Changzhou

China

Taormina 2398
Montevideo 11500
Uruguay

9 Allée Scheffer
Luxembourg City
Luxembourg

Ordinary

Qrdinary

QOrdinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

QOrdinary

Ordinary

Crdinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

50%

35%

50%

65%

50%

50%

50%

27.9%

Dormant company

Dormant company

Automotive
quality control

Autornotive
quality control

Automotive
quality controi

Dormant company

Automofive
quality control

Autemotive
guality control

Autormotive
quality confrol

Dormant company

Dormant company

Dormant company

Holding company

** Atalian Servest Limited (formerly Servest Group Limited holds a 50% shareholding in Atalian Servest JV Limited {formery
Atalian Servest Limited) which has not commenced trading. The carrying vaiue of the investment is £50.

Inventories
2018
Group £m
Consumables 4.2
4.2

The iotal cost of consumables expensed in the period and included within cost of sales is £90.4m.
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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 31 December 2018

Trade receivables

2018

Group £m

Trade receivables 88.3
Loss allowance (3.2)

85.1

Classification as trade receivables

Trade recsivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business.
They are generally due for settlement within 30 days and therefore are all classified as current. Trade receivables are
recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing components,
when they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to coliact the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Details about
the Group's impairment policies and the calculation of the loss allowance are provided in note 1.

Transferred receivables

The Group finances a portion of its working capital through a trade receivables sale programme comprising factoring
agreements which at the year end represented a maximum of £15.7m worth of factored receivables. The Group has not
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the trade receivables are therefore still recognised on
the statement of financial position with the recognition of a corresponding financial liability. The Group has been mandated
by the factoring company to manage on their behalf the racovery of the receivables that have been sold to them.

Fair values of trade receivables

Due to the short term nature of trade receivables, the carrying value is assumed to equal the fair value.
Impairment and risk exposure

Flease sea note 29 for further details of impairment and risk exposure

Other receivables
2018
Group £m
Other receivables 5.6
Prepayments 34
8.0
Other loans and receivables
2018
Group £m
Other receivables 8.9

Other receivables relate to a payment in kind loan to an associate of the Company that is repayable on 6 July 2022. Interest
accrues at 10% per annum on the initial loan balance and compounds annually.

Since initial recognition, the receivable has not seen a significant increase in the exposure to credit risk. The Group has
considered future possible outcomes in this assessment. As a result, no allowance for expected credit losses have been
recognised in relation to the receivable.
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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 31 December 2018
Other loans and receivables (continued)

2018
Company £m
Amounts due from group undertakings 2848

Amounts due from group undertakings relate to a loan with the parent company, La Financiére Atafian 8_A.S thatis repayable
in May 2025. Interest accrues on the loan at 5.96% per annum,

Since initial recognition, the amounts due from group undertakings has not seen a significant increase in the exposure to
credit risk. The Group has considered future possible cutcomes in this assessment. As a result, no allowance for expected
credit losses have been recoegnised in relation to the receivable.

Trade and other payables

Group 2018
Current £m
Trade payables 359
Other payables 420
Accruals 294
Contingent consideration 4.7

112.0

Trade payables are unsecured and are usually paid within 45 days of recognition. The carrying amounts of trade and other
payables are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

Company 2018
Current £m
Trade payables 5.8
5.8
Borrowings
2018
Group £m
Non-current
Cther foans owed to shareholders 356.1
356.1
Current
Bank overdrafts 2.4
Working capital facility 15.7
18.1
374.2

Total borrowings

The other loans cwed to shareholders is made up of several loans with La Financiére Atalian S.A.8. The loans have various
repayment dates and accrue interest at 5.96%. The working capital facility provides a maximum amount of £27.0m, has no
fixed repayment date and inveices are discounted at 0.2%.

2018
Company £m
Non-current
Other loans owed to shareholders 289.4
289.4
289.4

Total borrowings

The cther loans owed to shareholders is with La Financiére Atalian S.A.S. The loan is repayable in May 2025 and accrues
interest at 5.96%.
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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 31 December 2018

Borrowings (continued)

The below table sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for each of the periods presented.

Assats Liabilities from financing activities
Current Non-current
Cash Balances Working
on with Bank capital Lease Loans to Lease
hand banks | overdraft facility liabilities | sharehoiders liabllities Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Net debt as at:
27 Mar 2018 - - - - - - - -
Acquired on
business 1.5 - {33.4) - (1.6} (20.2) (4.7) ] (58.4)
combination
Cash flows - 9.1 31.0 {15.7) 1.0 (323.3) 2.2 | {295.7)
Foreign N R _
exchange * h ° 0.3 0.3
Other
movemants - - - - (3.6} (12.9) 47} (21.2)
31 Dec 2018 1.5 8.1 {2.4) {15.7) {4.2) (356.1) (7.2) | {(375.0)
23. Deferred tax
2018
Group £m
Deferred tax assets 24
Deferred tax liabilities (9.8)
2018
Assets Liabllities
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) comprise: £m £m
Fixed asset timing differences 0.2 -
Deferred tax liability on intangibles acquired on business _ (9.8)
combpination .
Taxable losses carried forward 22 -
At 31 December 24 (9.8}
The provision for deferred tax is made up as follows:
Fixed asset
and other Losses and
Acquired timing other
intangibles differences deductions Total
Deforred tax assets & liabilities £m £m £m £m
At 27 March 2018 - - - -
Recognised in the statement of profit or loss 1.0 0.5 22 3.7
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 26) {10.8) (0.3} - (11.1)
At 31 December 20138 (9.8) 0.2 2.2 {7.4)

£1.0m of the deferred tax is expected to be settfed within 12 months of the reporting date. The remainder will be settied

beyond 12 months of the reporting date.
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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 31 December 2018

24, Share capital

2018
Aflotted, called up and fully paid £m
216,920,000 Ordinary shares of £1 each 2169
2189

25. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balances with banks and balances within working capital facilities. Cash
and cash squivalents in the statement of cash flows comprise the following amounts:

2018
Group £m
Cash in hand 15
Balances with banks a1
Cash and cash equlvalents 10.8
Bank overdraft (2.4)
Net cash 8.2

Significant non-cash transactions

Curing the period the Group acquired property, piant and equipment with a total cost of £16.3m of which £7.7m were acquired
by means of finance leases. Finance leases and hire purchase are secured on the assets to which they relate.
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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 31 December 2018

Business combinations

Current period acquisition

During the period ended 31 December 2018, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of Atalian Servest Group
Holdings Limited {formerly Servest Limited). The acquisition method of accounting was used for all business combinations.

The purpose of these acquisitions was to:
s obtain access to a new market sector
acquire a national operation with a customer base which fits nicely with the other group companies

*
»  acquire a revenue stream from existing customers
e enhance ability to provide comprehensive FM contracts

Goodwill represents the value of the synergies arising from the economies of scale achievable in the enlarged group. These
synergistic benefits were the primary reason for entering into the business combinations.

Details of the fair value of identifiable assets and labllities for the acquisition of Atalian Servest Group Holdings Limited
(formerly Servest Limited), a facilities management company that operates throughout the UK and took place in May 2018,
are as follows:

Acquisition of Atalian Servest Group Holdings Fair value
Limited (formerly Servest Limited) Book value adjustment Fair value
£m £m £m
Property, plant & equipment 318 - 31.8
Current assets 146.1 - 1486.1
Cash and cash equivalents 9.0 - 9.0
Customer relationships - 61.9 61.9
Associate investment - 67.7 67.7
Deferred tax on other intangibles - (10.8) (10.8)
Trade and other payables (378.2) - {378.2}
Net liabilities acquired {191.3) 118.8 (72.5)
Details of the fair value of consideration upon acquisition are as follows:
£m
Cash 300.0
Net liabilities acquired 725
3725

Goodwill (see note 13)

The business acquired contributed £484.5m to the Atalian Servest Holdings Limited group revenue in the period ended 31
December 2018. The effect on the net loss for the period since acquisition date to their first-ime consolidation was £27.9m.
As part of this transaction and included in the total cash consideration paid of £300.0m, Atalian Servest Group Holdings
Limited {formerly Servest Limited) purchased the remaining 26.2% holding in Atalian Servest Group Limited {formerly
Servest Group Holdings Lirnited) for £78.3m which was previously aftributable to the non-controlling interest.

Acquisition costs of £5.7m were recognised as an expense in non-underying administrative expenses.

Contingent liabilities

As disclosed in Note 16, the Company’s subsidiaries have taken advantage of the exemption available under Section 479A
of the Companies Act 2006 in respect of the requirement for audit. As a condition of the exemption, the Company has
guaranteed the period-end liabilities of the relevant subsidiaries until they are settled in full. The liabilities of the subsidiaries

at the pericd-end was £215,113,000.
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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the period ended 31 December 2018

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group pension arrangements are operated through a defined contribution scheme and a Group defined benefit scheme.

Defined contribution scheme

2018
£m

Amount recognised as an expense 3.2

The Group is pan of a local authority defined benefit pension scheme. This is a multi-employer scheme and therefore is
accounted for as a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are included in the above figures,

Defined benefit scheme
The Group operates a final salary defined benefit pension scheme.

The scheme provides employees with a pension benefit basad on final pensionable pay. The scheme is funded by the
Company and employees. Contributions by the Company are calculated by 2 separate actuarial valuation based on the
funding palicies detailed in the scheme agreement. The latest triennial valuation was completed on 30 Saptember 2017,

The scheme [s iegaily separate from the Group and administerad by a separate fund. The board of the fund is made up
solaly of an independent trustee. By law, the board is required o act in the best interest of participants to the schemes and
has the responsibility of setting investrment, contribution, and cther relevant policies.

The scheme is exposed o a number of risks, including:

«  Investment risk: investment returns on the schermes assets may be lower than anlicipated, sspecially if falls in asset
values are not matched by similar falls in the value of schems liabilities.

s [nteresf rate risk: movement in discount rate used {high quality corporate bonds) will change the defined benefit
obligaticn.

e Longevity risk: scheme members may live longer than assumed, for example due to unanticipated advance in
medical healthcare,

s Salary risk: increase in future salaries increases the gross defined benefit obligation.

+ Legislative changes could also lead to an increase in scheme liabilities,

Empioyees not participating in a defined benefit scheme are aligible to join a defined contribution scheme.

The Group has determined that, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the defined benefit plan, and with statutory
requirements (including minimum funding requirements) for the plan, the present value of refunds or reductions in future
contributions is not lower than the balance of the total fair value of the plan assets less the total present value of obligations.
As such, no defined benefit asset was recognised at 31 December 2018. The Group expects to pay £0.3m in contributions
to its defined benefit plan in 2019.
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Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Statement of financial position obligations
- Fair value of assets at end of period
- Present value of obligations at end of period
- Asset ceiling not recognised
- Asset/(liability) at 31 December

Defined pension benefits
- Related deferred tax asset
Liability in the statement of financial position

Statement of profit or loss charge included in
operating profit

2018
£m

27
(.7)
(1.0)

- For defined pensicn benefits 0.2
0.2
e
Defined benefit Fair value of Net defined
obligation plan assets benefit/asset
2018 2018 2018
£m £m £m
Batance at 27 March 2018 - - -
Acquired on acquisition {1.5) 15 -
Service cost and interest
Current service cost (0.2) - {0.2)
Past service cost - - -
Interest {expense)income on defined benefit obligation {0.1) 0.1 -
Total defined benefit gain/(expense) recagnised in profit (0.3) 01 (0.2)
or loss
Remeasurement loss
Actuarial loss/(gain) fram:
- Financial assumptions 0.1 - 01
- Adjustments {experience) 0.1 - 0.1
- Effect of asset ceiling - (0.4) (0.4)
0.2 (C.4) (0.2)
Total defined benefit loss (0.1) (0.3) {0.4)
Cashfiows
Employer contributions - 0.4 0.4
Benefits paid 0.2 (0.2) -
0.2 0.2 0.4
At 31 December (1.4) 14 -
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Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

Actua!l return on plan assets

The current service cost has been recognised within cost of sales and the intarest cost and expected retum have been
recognised within finance income.

The fair value of the scheme assets consists of;

2018

£m

Equity instruments 1.4
Gilts 0.3
Corporate bonds 0.6
Property and other assets 0.4
2.7

Principal actuarial assumptions at the statement of financial position date (expressed as weighted averages) are as follows:

2018
Discount rate 2.80%
Future salary increases 3.40%
Future pensicn increases 3.40%
Proportion of employees opting for early retirement 3.40%
Retail price index {RPI} 3.40%
Longevity at retirement age (current pensioners)
- Males 201
- Females 220
Longevity at retirement age (future pensioners)
- Males 21.2
- Females 23.2

Sensitivity analysis
The increase in the defined benefit obligation of a reasonably possible change to one actuarial assumption, holding all other
assumptions constant, Is presented in the tabie below:

Reasonably 2018
Actuarial assumption possible change Em
Discount rate 0.25% -
Salary increases 0.25% -
Inflation 0.25% 0.1
Future mortality rates 1 year 0.1
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Financial assets and financial liabilities

Classes and fair value of financial instruments

2018
£m
Financial assets af amortised cost
Assets as per the statement of financial position
Trade receivables (note 18} 85.1
Other receivables {note 19) 56
Other loans and recelvablas (note 20) 5.9
Cash and cash equivalents (note 25) 10.6
107.2

Total

Al} of the above items are treated as financial assets at amortised cost. Fair value is the same as beok value for all of the
above assets.

2018
£m
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Liabllities as per the statement of financial position
Trade payables (note 21) 35.9
Other payables 6.7
Accruals (note 21} 29.4
Current borrowings {note 22) 18.1
Non-current borrowings (note 22) 356.1
Lease liabilities (note 15) 11.4
457.6

Total

All of the above financial liabilities are freated as held at amortised cost, Fair value is the same as book value for all of the
above assets.

Other payables in the table above are contractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity
whereas the other payables within note 21 also include statutory items that are not contractual.

2018
£m
Financial iabilities af fair value through profit or loss
Liabilities as per the statemant of financial position
Contingent consideration {note 21} 4.7
4.7

The ¢contingent consideration is a financial liability held at fair value. The fair value is determined by the application of level
3 inputs as it is not linked to quoted prices or observable market data. The vaiue of contingent consideration is dependent
on the eam out clauses within the underlying acquisition agreements and are focussed around the companies achigving
certain earnings and profitability targets. The closing balance of £4.7m relates to contingent consideration in relation to

acquisitions completed by subsidiary companies during the period.

In calculating the fair value of the contingent consideration, we review forecasts of the relevant subsidiary and assess the
likelihood of results being achieved that would meet the criteria for the payment of the consideration. In addition, we sensitise
these figures and consider the probability of reasonably possible changes and consider the potential impact on the figures
recognised. The Directors are satisfied that the figures that support these assumptions represent the best available estimates
of expected outturn and therefore believe no further adjustment to the fair values is required at the reporting date.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Within the sharehclders agreement for the investment in Bottega investco S.A R.L, there is a put right that entitles the
Company the right to obligate the majority sharehclder, Digital Portfolio Holdings LLC, to acquire all shares held by Atalian
Servest Group Holdings Limited {formerly Servest Limited), a subsidiary company, for fair value. The put right is exercisable
from the sixth anniversary of the agreement and continues indefinitely. There is a corresponding call right commencing from
the sixth anniversary and chligates the Company to sell their shareholding to Digita! Portiolic Holdings LLC. As at 31
December 2018, no value has been atiributed to this derivative based on the investment value being materially comparable
to the period end fair value of the investment of which the value of the derivative would be based.

The group has no other financial instruments measured as Levei 1 or 2 included at fair value,

Financial risk management

The Group's operations expose it to a number of financial risks, primarily credit risk and availability of capital 1o fund future
growth. A risk management programme has been established to protect the Group against the potential adverse effects of
these financial risks.

Credit risk

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to customers are closely monitored by the Directors, and although the Group has
a number of significant customers, there are also a large number of other customers in place which reduce the concentration
of risk to an acceptable level. Customers are assessed for creditworthiness. The Group has credit insurance over a large
proportion of the debtor balances and credit limits are also imposed on customers and reviewed regularly. The debtors age
analysis is evaluated on a regular basis for potential doubtful debts,

The Group has a pelicy of holding surplus funds with approved high-quality banks. At the period-end date, the Group held
funds of £6.7m with Lloyds pic, Bank of Scotland pl¢ and HSBC plc.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is:

2018
Financial assets £m
Trade receivables 85.1
Other current assets 56
Other lcans and receivables 5.8
Cash and cash equivalents 10.6
An analysis of trade receivables:
Neither
Carrying impaired
2018 amount norpastdue Past due but notimpaired
More than
61-80 days 90 days
£m £m £m £m
Trade receivables 85.1 79.4 1.7 4.0

The Group's debtor payment period varies depending on invoicing arrangements with customers. The average debfor
payment period is 55 days. The Group made a loss allowance agains! trade receivables using the ECL method of £3.2m.
The movement in the loss allowance is included in administrative expenses in the income statement.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future ¢ash flows of our financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. The Group is exposed to the market risks in terms of fluctuations in interest rates, but this only impacts a
small portion of the Group's borrowing as a majority is at a fixed rate. The Group also has a small exposure to foreign
exchange risk due to loans denominated in Euros. No hedging instruments have been entered as the risk is considered

immaterial.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Interest rate risk
interest rate exposure and sensitivity analysis:

Carrying Average If interest rates were 1% If interest rates were 1%
2018 amount interest rate higher lower
Pre-tax Pre-tax
profit Equity profit Equity
Financial agsets £m % £m £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 10.6 - 0.1 0.1 {0.1) (0.1)
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 1.4 8.5 (0.1) (0.1) 0.1 0.1
Borrowings - non-current 20.0 6.0 {0.2) (0.2) 0.2 0.2
{0.2) {0.2) 0.2 0.2

The other receivables (note 20) and a portion of the non-current borrowings have been excluded from the above analysis
as these are at a fixed rate of interest. The average rate is calculated as the weighted average effective interest rate.

The rate on cash and cash equivalent balances represents the average rate eamned on cash balances after taking into
account bank set-off arrangements.

The tablas above show the effect on profit and equity after tax if interest rates at that date had been 1% higher or lower with
all variables held constant, taking inte account all underlying exposures. Concurrent movements in interest rates and parallel
shifts in the yield curves are assumed. A sensitivity of 1% has been selected as this is considered reasonable given the
current level of both short-term and long-term interest rates. When applied to short-term interest rates this would represent
three to four rate increases which is reasonably possible in the current environment with the bias coming from the reserve
bank and confirmed by market expectations that interest rates in the UK are more than likely to move up than down in the

coming period.

Liquidity risk

The Group maintains sufficient cash levels to enable it to meet its liabilities as they fall due and utilises support available
from the uvltmate parent, La Financiére Atalian S.A.S. Management review cashflow forecasts on a regular basis to

determine whether the Group has sufficient cash reserves to meet future working capital requirements and to take advantage
of business opportunities. The Group has cash in hand of £8.2m at 31 December 2018. The average creditor payment period

is 27 days.

Contractual maturity analysis for financial liabilities:

Due Due
Due or due between between Due
in less than 1to3 3 months between 1 Due after

2018 1 month months to 1 year to5 years 5 years Total
Financial liabilities £m £m £m £m £m £m
Trade andg other payables 72.0 6.9 24 0.1 - 81.4
Working capital facility - - 15.7 - - 15.7
Shareholder loan - - - 356.1 - 356.1
Lease liabilities - - 16 9.8 - 11.4
72.0 6.9 19.7 366.0 - 464.6
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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited
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For the period ended 31 December 2018

Related party transactions

Sales/ interest Shortterm Long-term Amounts
{purchases) of (payable) employee employee owed {to)from
goods/services freceivable  benefits  benefits related party

2018 £m £m £m £m £m
The parent

La Financiére Atalian S.A.S 8.7 {(11.1)" - (289.4)
Subsidiaries

Atalian Servest Group Holdings Limited . 324 _ 85.0

{formerly Servest Limited}
Atalian Servest Limitad (formery Servest Group

" u -
Limited) 6.9 173.9"
Atalian Servest AMK Limited (formerly Servest . 0.6° _ 15.00
Arthur McKay Limited) ’ '
Atalian Servest Food Co Limited (formerly . 0.3s _ 7.3h
Servest Food Co Limited) ’ ’
Servest Aktrion Limited - 0.4* - 3.6~
Key management personnel
Key management remuneration . - 3.4 0.2* -

* Where indicated abave, fhese amaunts are related parties at both company and at group level.
A Where indicated above, these amounts are related party transactions at company level only.

Amounts owed io La Financiére Atalian $.A.S are shown within other loans owed to sharehoiders, in non-current borrowings.
Amounts owed by the subsidiaries are shown within amounts owed by group undertakings included within other loans and
receivables, Key management remuneration relates to Directors and senior managers that make up the executive board.

Capital management

The Group's objectives are 1o ensure sufficient funds are heid to meet all liabilities as they jall due and to effectively and
successfully manage any risks or uncertainties refating to capital management. The Group manages its capital to ensure
that entities in the Group will be able 1o continue as a going concemn while maximising the return to stakeholders through
the optimisation of debt and equity. The key processes used to the Group to enable it to mest its objectives are as follows:

* The Group treasury function maintains a rolling 3-month cashflow forecasts which are circutated to the senior board
on a regular basis.

« The Group and the divisions within the Group prepare detalled profit, balance sheet and cashflow forecasts to
December 2019 which shows that the Group will remain profitable, cash generative and will have the available
resources to pay its liabilities as they fall due,

» The Group maintains a detailed 5-year funding mode! which tracks cash generation, headroom, covenant
compliance and ather key measures.

» Cash is tightly monitored by the Group to ensure that current tfabilities can be met as and when they fali due.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt per note 22, cash per note 25 and equity per the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. The Group's capital structure is reviewed regularly. The Group is not subject to externally imposed
regulatory capital requirements.

Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

This is the smaflest group for which consolidated statements are prepared. The immedfate parent company is Atalian Europe
S.A. The ultimate parent company and the head of the largest group for which consolidated financial statements are drawn
up is La Financiére Atalian S.A.S, a company incorporated in France. Consclidated financial statements are available from
111- 113 Quai Jules Guesda, 94400 Vitry-sur-Sein, France. In the gpinion of the Directors, Mr. F.J. Julien Is the ultimate
controfling party.

Reserves

Retained earnings
Retained earnings account represent cumulative profits or losses, net of dividends paid and other adjustments.

Share capital
Called up share capital reserve represents the nominal value of the shares issued
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